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Brothers, Sheila C.

From: Smith, William T.
Sent: Sunday, April 26, 2020 11:04 PM
To: Brothers, Sheila C.
Cc: Bird-Pollan, Jennifer
Subject: SAASC props
Attachments: CI admissions program change.pdf; Proposed SR 4.2.8 Undergraduate Certificates.docx; 

Proposed SR 4.2.9 Graduate Certificates.docx

Proposal Name: Proposed Policy to Limit Undergraduate Transfer Credit Hours for Undergraduate Degrees and Minors in 
Gatton College of Business and Economics  
 
This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the College of Business and Economics request to unify the 
policy for the College’s undergraduate major and minor transfer credit limits. 
 
Rational: The existing individual department-specific transfer credit requirements could not be enforced in the university 
system.  The proposed college-wide policy will maintain consistency across majors and minors and simplify the 
enforcement process. 
 
 
William T Smith, Associate Professor 
Dept of Electrical and Computer Engineering 
(859) 257-1009 
 



Gatton College of Business and Economics 
Proposed policy to limit credit hour transfer for major & minor requirements 
 
Background 
The Gatton College of Business and Economics approved the following proposed policy related to the number of 
credit hours permitted to be transferred from another University to satisfy the major requirements for each 
undergraduate degree. Individual departments developed department-specific requirements that could not be 
enforced in the university system. A college-wide policy was proposed to maintain consistency across all College 
majors and ease the enforcement process. A college-wide policy exists for Minor Requirements and is being 
slightly modified to be consistent with the proposed Major Requirement policy. 
 
The existing policy for Minor Requirements: 
At least half of all upper-division classes used to complete each minor must be from the Gatton College. 
 
Proposal 
The proposed new policy for Major Requirements and modification to the existing policy for Minor Requirements: 
At least two-thirds of the upper division credit hours in the Major Requirements must have been completed at the 
University of Kentucky or through an approved Education Abroad program through the University of Kentucky or 
other pre-approved international partner. At least one-half of the upper division credit hours in the Minor 
Requirements must have been completed at the University of Kentucky or through an approved Education Abroad 
program through the University of Kentucky or other pre-approved international partner. Any transferred upper-
division classes for the Major Requirements must have been completed with a grade of C or better. 
 
Additional information for clarification: 
 The proposed new policy and modification to existing policy does not apply to UK Core, pre-major, or College 

core requirements 
 The proposed new policy and modification to existing policy does not conflict with University Policies: 

 Transferability of course credit earned at two-year institutions is limited to a total of 67 semester hours. 
[Senate Rule 4.2.1.2.] 

 All candidates for an undergraduate degree must complete 30 of their last 36 hours toward their degree 
at UK. [Senate Rule 5.4.1.1.] 

 A minimum grade of D- is required for a course to be accepted by UK. (The policy allows for college and 
departments to require a higher grade toward degree requirements.) [Undergraduate Bulletin, Transfer of 
Credit, General Transfer Policies] 

 
Application of the proposed new policy: 

 Major 
Credit 
Hours 

Proposed Gatton 
Minimum 

(at least two-thirds) 

Gatton 3-credit hour courses 
required (all major courses 

are 3-hour courses) 

Proposed Maximum 
Permitted 

From Transfer 
Accounting 27 18 6 courses 3 courses 
Finance 21 14 5 courses 2 courses 
Economics 21 14 5 courses 2 courses 
Marketing 18 12 4 courses 2 courses 
Management 18 12 4 courses 2 courses 
General Business 15 10 4 courses 1 course 

The proposed modification to the existing policy for Minor Requirements does not change the current application 
but does allow for study abroad and international partner courses to be included in the required one-half 
residency. 
 
Attachments: A memo of the College approval process, the proposed edits to the Business & Economic bulletin, 
departmental letters of support, and OSPIE documentation are enclosed. 



































144 Gatton College of Business and Economics Building   |   Lexington, KY 40506   |   P: 859-257-4627   |   gatton.uky.edu 

Gatton College of  
Business and Economics
Undergraduate Resource Center 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
FROM: Jennifer Siebenthaler, Associate Dean for Undergraduate Affairs 

SUBJECT: Policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements  
 
DATE: May 20th, 2019 

In alignment with the Gatton College of Business and Economic’s operating rules and procedures, the 
College Undergraduate Studies Committee reviewed and approved the proposed policy to limit credit 
hours transferred for major requirements during the regular committee meeting on January 16th, 2019. 
The Committee is comprised of the Director of Undergraduate Studies for each College department with 
an undergraduate program, the Associate Dean for Undergraduate Affairs, and a student representative. 
All members were present during the deliberation of the policy and voted unanimously to present the 
proposal to the faculty with a recommendation to approve. 
 
The details of the proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were 
presented to all faculty at the spring faculty meeting. Faculty voted in full support of the proposed policy 
as of April 17th, 2019. 
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Gatton College of  
Business and Economics
Department of Finance and Quantitative Methods 

  
 

May 24, 2019

TO: Jennifer Siebenthaler 
Associate Dean for Undergraduate Affairs

FROM: Paul Childs
Department Chair
Finance and Quantitative Methods

The details of the proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were presented to 
all faculty at the spring faculty meeting. The College faculty voted in full support of the proposed policy as of 
April 17th, 2019. The Department of Finance and Quantitative Methods is aware of the proposed policy, and 
we were included in the opportunity to vote. We fully support the proposal.

Digitally signed by Paul Childs 
DN: cn=Paul Childs, o=University of 
Kentucky, ou=Department of Finance and 
Quantitative Methods, 
email=pchilds@uky.edu, c=US 
Date: 2019.05.24 10:48:41 -04'00'



434 Gatton College of Business and Economics Building | Lexington, KY 40506 | P: 859-257-1876 | gatton.uky.edu

Gatton College of 
Business and Economics
Von Allmen School of Accountancy

 

May 21, 2019

Office of the Senate Council
203E Main Building, -0032

This Letter is in regard to Gatton College, Proposed policy to limit credit hour 
transfer for major & minor requirements presented below. The details of the 
proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were 
presented to all faculty at the spring Gatton College faculty meeting. The College 
faculty voted in full support of the proposed policy as of April 17th, 2019. The Von 
Allmen faculty were aware of the proposed policy and were included in the 
opportunity to vote.

Sincerely,

Urton Anderson
Director and EY Professor of Accounting
Von Allmen School of Accountancy

cn=Urton Anderson, o=University 
of Kentucky, ou=Gatton College, 
email=uan222@uky.edu, c=US 
2019.05.30 17:03:48 -04'00'



May 21, 2019 Department of 
Management
338 Gatton Business and 
Economics Building
Lexington, KY 40506-0034
http://gatton.uky.edu

The details of the proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were 
presented to all faculty at the spring faculty meeting. The College faculty voted in full support of 
the proposed policy as of April 17th, 2019. The Department of Management is aware of the 
proposed policy and were included in the opportunity to vote. 

Sincerely, 

Daniel J. Brass
J. Henning Hilliard Professor of Innovation Management
Chair, Department of Management
Gatton College of Business and Economics
University of Kentucky

Daniel J. 
Brass

Digitally signed by Daniel J. Brass 
DN: cn=Daniel J. Brass, 
o=University of Kentucky, 
ou=Department of Management, 
email=dbrass@uky.edu, c=US 
Date: 2019.05.21 12:20:59 -04'00'
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Gatton College of  
Business and Economics 
Department of Economics 

 
 
Tuesday, May 28, 2019 
 
To: Office of the Senate Council 
 
From: William Hoyt 
 Chair, Department of Economics 
 
re: Limits on Credit Hours 
 
The details of the proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were 
presented to all faculty at the spring faculty meeting. The College faculty voted in full support of the 
proposed policy as of April 17th, 2019. The Department of Economics is aware of the proposed 
policy and were included in the opportunity to vote.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

cn=William Hoyt, o=Gatton College 
of Business and Economics, 
University of Kentucky, 
ou=Department of Economics, 
email=whoyt@uky.edu, c=US 
2019.05.28 10:27:08 -04'00'
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Gatton College of  
Business and Economics 
Department of Marketing & Supply Chain 

  
 
 
 

May 20, 2019

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Jennifer Siebenthaler, Associate Dean for Undergraduate Affairs  
 
FROM: David Hardesty, Chair Department of Marketing and Supply Chain 

SUBJECT: Transferring Major Requirements 

 

The details of the proposed policy to limit credit hours transferred for major requirements were 
presented to all faculty at the spring faculty meeting. The College faculty voted in full support of the 
proposed policy as of April 17th, 2019. The Department of Marketing and Supply Chain is aware of the 
proposed policy and were included in the opportunity to vote.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

David M. Hardesty 
Chair Department of Marketing and Supply Chain 
Carol Martin Gatton Endowed Chair 
Director of the Behavioral Research Lab 
 



From: noreply@qualtrics-survey.com
To: Keath, Rena
Subject: Substantive Change Decision
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:21:08 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Accounting, Bachelor's (52.0301).  
My email will serve 2 purposes:  1.) Next steps for SACSCOC, and 2.) Verification and notification that you
have contacted OSPIE—a Senate requirement for proposal approval.

1.       Next steps for SACSCOC:  None required 
2.        Verification that OSPIE has reviewed the proposal: Based on the proposal documentation

presented and Substantive Change Checklist, the proposed program changes (refer to list below) are
not substantive changes as defined by the University or SACSCOC, the university's regional accreditor.
Therefore, no additional information is required by the Office of Strategic Planning & Institutional
Effectiveness at this time. The proposed program change(s) may move forward in accordance with
college and university-level approval processes.

Description of Proposed Change(s):
· We are proposing a change to the policy to limit credit hours transfer for all Gatton majors. The requirement
described is already in force for all Gatton minors. “At least two-thirds of the upper division credit hours in the
Major Requirements must have been completed at the University of Kentucky or through an approved
Education Abroad program through the University of Kentucky or other pre-approved international partner. At
least one-half of the upper division credit hours in the Minor Requirements must have been completed at the
University of Kentucky or through an approved Education Abroad program through the University of Kentucky
or other pre-approved international partner. Any transferred upper-division classes for the Major Requirements
must have been completed with a grade of C or better.” This change does not apply to UK Core, pre-major or
College core requirements. It only affects major credit hours.

Should you have questions or concerns about UK’s substantive change policy and its procedures, please do not
hesitate contacting our office.
Office of Strategic Planning & Institutional Effectiveness
University of Kentucky
Visit the Institutional Effectiveness Website: https://proxy.qualtrics.com/proxy/?
url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.uky.edu%2Fie&token=w%2BXHkAS0tASxS4xDceQ8e0MxnHdJ2Eu4smnkDcYodCE%3D



From: noreply@qualtrics-survey.com
To: Keath, Rena
Subject: Substantive Change Decision
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:21:53 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Economics, Bachelor's (52.0601).  
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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:21:34 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Finance, Bachelor's (52.0801).  
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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:29:41 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to General Business,
Bachelor's (52.0201).  
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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:22:13 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Management, Bachelor's (52.0101).  
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
Date: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 9:22:40 PM

Dear Rena Keath, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Marketing, Bachelor's (52.1401).  
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


	Credit Limit, Economics (5-21-19).pdf
	Edits for B&E Bulletin.pdf
	Faculty support of transfer credit limit.pdf
	FAQM Credit Hours Letter of Support FAQM.pdf
	memo to senate on policy to limit credit hour transfer for major  minor requirements
	Mgt letter course policy.pdf
	MKT Major Requirements Memo.pdf
	Proposed credit limit to transfers for majors.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision ACC.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision ECO.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision FIN.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision GB.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision MGT.pdf
	Substantive Change Decision MKT.pdf

